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January 13, 2015 
 
 
Rahm Emanuel 
Mayor 
City of Chicago 
121 N. LaSalle, Suite 500 
Chicago, IL 60602 
 
 
Re: Significant Activity Report  
 
Mayor Emanuel: 
 
This letter is to inform you that on December 18, 2014, a federal grand jury in the Northern 
District of Illinois returned an indictment charging Elizabeth Perino with mail fraud and wire 
fraud for actions taken to defraud the City of Chicago MWBE program, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§ 1341 and 1343.  United States v. Elizabeth Perino 11-CR-492 (ND IL). You will find the 
indictment attached to this report.  
 
The indictment, which followed a joint investigation of the Chicago Office of Inspector General 
(OIG) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), alleges that Perino, through her company, 
Perdel Contracting Company, acted as a pass-through on a multi-million dollar runway repair 
project at O’Hare Airport and provided fraudulent WBE invoices to support previously unmet 
DBE goals in a compliance audit of another O’Hare public works project. More specifically, the 
indictment alleges that Perino schemed with the Contractor and caused documents to be prepared 
and submitted to defraud the City by falsely claiming to have provided equipment and labor 
when Perdel did not perform, manage, or supervise any work on either project.  
 
Perino was originally charged by complaint in July 2011 as an offshoot of an OIG/FBI 
investigation of MWBE program fraud by Anthony Cappello. Cappello pleaded guilty in July 
2012 to participating in a scheme to fraudulently obtain City of Chicago contracts valued at more 
than $2.3 million. As part of his sentence, that included a two year term of probation, Cappello 
paid $169,676 as restitution to the City, representing his profit from those contracts, and a 
$25,000 fine. 
 
Criminal charges are not evidence of guilt. The defendant is presumed innocent and is entitled to 
a fair trial at which the government has the burden of proving guilt beyond a reasonable doubt. 
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If you need any additional information, please feel free to call me or Rachel Leven, Public 
Affairs Coordinator, at (773) 478-0534.  

Respectfully, 
 

 
 

    
Joseph M. Ferguson 
Inspector General 
City of Chicago  


























